
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 19, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held August 15, 2022 
• Executive Session held August 15, 2022 

b. Approve Low Income Household Water Assistance Program Agreement 
 

8. Employee Recognition 
9. Proclamation – Chase Elliott Day 

10. State Resolution for the 50th Anniversary of Burt’s Pumpkin Farm 
 

BUSINESS 
 

11. Standard Specifications for Roadway and Drainage Systems Amendment 

12. Impact Fee Study Agreement with Georgia Mountain Regional Commission 

13. Special Event with Alcohol - Bootleggers Bar & Grill, October 21 – 23, 2022 

14. Funding for Development of Well #112 

15. Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment Regarding a Trail to the Library 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

16. 2023 Solid Waste Collection Service Rate and Establish Service Charge 
17. 2023 Meeting Calendar Review 

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

18. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
19. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 

 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED        

     ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
   

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, October 3, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk at 
Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held August 15, 2022 
• Executive Session held August 15, 2022 

b. Approve Low Income Household Water Assistance Program Agreement 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD AUGUST 15, 2022 
• EXECUTIVE MEETING HELD AUGUST 15, 2022 

 
 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 15, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City 
Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utilities 
Operation Manager Jacob Barr, Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway and Interim Planning 
Director Diane Callahan. 

 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Illg.   
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason reminded citizens the Farmer’s Market has vendors on 
Wednesdays from 3:00 pm – 6:00 pm and Saturdays from 8:00 am  - 1:00 pm.  He also stated the 
City Council only has one meeting scheduled next month; September 19, 2022. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to amend the agenda to remove item #11 and adding item 
#18 Ordinance #04-2022 made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

Attorney Tallant stated the advertising of Ordinance #04-2022 was done correctly to satisfy the 
Zoning Procedures Act so he is comfortable with removing the incorrect agenda item (#11) and 
adding it as item #18.  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended made by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  Paul Winschuh, 375 Angela Lane, Dawsonville – He approached the City Council 
about consideration of placing a shed within the rear setbacks on his property.  The Council advised 
him to work with the Planning and Zoning department.  
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a,b) made by 
M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held August 1, 2022 

b. Approve Permit Fee Waiver Request – Dawson County Sheriff’s Office – Fees of $840.00 
waived for Permit No. C2300011 

 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  The Mayor and Council presented Blake Croft with the July 2022 
Employee of the Month award.   

 

9. AWARD ANNOUNCEMENT – CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN 
FINANCIAL REPORTING FY 2021:  Finance Director Gazaway reported the City has received the 
award again for financial reporting from GFOA and presented it to the City Council.  She further 
stated the City has received the award since 2014. 

 

10. PROCLAMATION – NATIONAL HEALTH CENTER WEEK AUGUST 7 – 13, 2022:  Mayor Mike 
Eason read the proclamation.  

 

11. Removed from the agenda. 
 

BUSINESS 
 

12. IMPACT FEE STUDY:  Motion to reject all bids received for the City of Dawsonville Impact Fee 
Study RFP made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

13. MILLAGE RATE FOR TAX YEAR 2022:  Motion to set the 2022 millage rate to 8.304 and roll it 
back to zero made by M. French; W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

WORK SESSION 
 

14. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROADWAY AND DRAINAGE SYSTEMS AMENDMENT: 
Motion to amend the Standard Specifications for Roadway and Drainage Systems, Division III, 
Section 1.11 to include option #1 and an additional stipulation which requires video inspection for 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 15, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 3 
 

infrastructure constructed prior to January 1, 2020 prior to dedication to the City made by C. Phillips; 
second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

15. PARKING ORDINANCE:  Public Works Director Hansard presented the ordinance and asked for 
feedback from the City Council.  Mayor Eason asked the City Council to review the ordinance and 
provide their comments to staff. Short discussion occurred.  
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

16. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz provided his report in the agenda packet and 
reported the leak adjustment for the previous month was $374.00 and the water meter replacement 
project is underway. 

 

17. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Finance Director Gazaway presented the 
financial reports representing fund balances and activity provided through July 31, 2022.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING   

18. ORDINANCE #04-2022: AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE TO AMEND ITS 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS; TO ADDRESS BUFFERS; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES (FIRST READING: 
AUGUST 1, 2022; PUBLIC HEARING, SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT: 
AUGUST 15, 2022):  City Manager Bolz read the second reading of the ordinance amendment.  
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor. Mayor Eason conducted the public hearing.  No one spoke in favor of or opposition to the 
request.  Motion to close the public hearing made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.   
 

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 04-2022 made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried three 
in favor (Illg, Phillips, Walden) with one opposed (French). (Exhibit “A”)              

    EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

At 5:27 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for potential/pending 
litigation was made by C. Phillips; second by M. French. Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

Councilmember Phillips left the meeting.   
 

At 6:01 p.m. a motion to close executive session was made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  
Vote carried unanimously in favor (3-0) 
 

Motion to resume regular session was made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor (3-0) 

 

    ADJOURNMENT: 
 

At 6:04 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously. 

 
 

 Approved this 19th day of September 2022. 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 15, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 





Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLD WATER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

AGREEMENT 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR AGREEMENT TO PARTICIPATE IN LIHWAP 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• THIS WILL BE THE SECOND YEAR WE PARTICIPATE – IT WAS A GREAT BENEFIT TO 
SOME OF OUR RESIDENTS LAST YEAR 

• LEGISLATION PASSED TO PROVIDE ASSISTANCE TO ELIGIBLE RESIDENTS FOR 
WATER/WASTEWATER UTILITY BILLS 

• PAYMENTS ARE MADE DIRECTLY TO THE SERVICE PROVIDER (SIGNED AGREEMENT 
REQUIRED) 

• ELIGIBLITY IS DETERMIND BY OUR LOCAL COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY WHICH IS 
THE NINTH DISTRICT OPPORTUNITY 

• PROGRAM IS SIMILAR TO LIHEAP – LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE 
PROGRAM 

• AGREEMENT APPROVED BY CITY ATTORNEY 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
    APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:      Beverly Banister, City Clerk           

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7b     
 

 

 













































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• SERVICE AWARDS FOR SEPTEMBER 
• AUGUST 2022 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH  

 
    
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   PROCLAMATION – CHASE ELLIOTT DAY, AUGUST 27, 2022 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO READ AND PRESENT PROCLAMATION FOR CHASE ELLIOTT DAY TO HONOR HIS WIN 
FOR THE 2022 NASCAR CUP SERIES REGULAR SEASON 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

     
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  9     
 

 

 



 
 

BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
 

A PROCLAMATION 
 

CHASE ELLIOTT DAY 
August 27, 2022 

 
 
WHEREAS, Chase Elliott has won the 2022 NASCAR Cup Series Regular Season Championship 
ahead of the regular season finale at Daytona International Speedway making him the fifth driver 
to win the regular season crown since NASCAR started this award in 2017. 
 
WHEREAS, Chase Elliott had four first place victories in the 2022 Regular Season at Dover 
Motor Speedway, Nashville Superspeedway, Atlanta Motor Speedway and Pocono Raceway.  He 
also had ten top-five finishes, seventeen top-ten finishes and 688 laps led through the first twenty-
five races and will lead the 2022 NASCAR Cup Series postseason playoffs with forty points.   
 
WHEREAS, Chase Elliott won his first Cup Series Championship in 2020, his fifth full season in 
Cup, by capturing his fifth win of the season at Phoenix Raceway. 
 
WHEREAS, Chase Elliott has seventeen career Cup Series wins and a win in the 2020 NASCAR 
All-Star Race at Bristol Motor Speedway.   
 
WHEREAS, Chase Elliott was named the Most Popular Driver in the Cup Series in 2018 – 2021 
and became the first rookie to win a NASCAR national division championship when he captured 
the Xfinity Series title in 2014. 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Dawsonville is honored to recognize Chase Elliott for his outstanding 
performance and ultimate triumph in the 2022 NASCAR Cup Series Regular Season 
Championship as well as his past accomplishments including the 2020 Cup Series Championship.   
 
 
THEREFORE, I, MIKE EASON, Mayor of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia, do herby proclaim 
August 27, 2022 as CHASE ELLIOTT DAY. 
 
In witness thereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Dawsonville to 
be affixed this 19th day of September in the year of our Lord, Two Thousand and Twenty-Two. 
 
 
    
 
       __________________________ 
       Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
 
       Attest: 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Beverly Banister, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   STATE RESOLUTION FOR THE 50TH ANNIVERSARY OF BURT’S PUMPKIN 

FARM 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO PARTICIPATE IN A STATE RESOLUTION SIGNED BY WILL WADE AND DAVID RALSTON 
TO HONOR THE 50TH ANNIVERSARY OF BURT’S PUMPKIN FARM 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

    DAWSON COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE WILL ALSO HAVE A SPECIAL RIBBON 
CUTTING CEREMONY TO PRESENT TO JOHNNY AND KATHY BURT 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:  STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROADWAY AND DRAINAGE SYSTEMS AMENDMENT 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022      
 

 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
TO REVIEW AND RATIFY AMENDMENT TO DIVISION III, SECTION 1.11 STORM WATER 
INFRASTRUCTURE DEDICATION AND STORM WATER INFRASTRUCTURE INSPECTION  
 
** SEE ATTACHED AMENDMENT AS DRAFTED BY CITY ATTORNEY 
 

 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• COUNCIL VOTED TO APPROVE AMENDMENT ON 08/15/2022 
• SPECIFICATIONS LAST UPDATED DECEMBER 6, 2021. 
• APPROVAL WILL ELIMINATE THE REQUIRED STORM WATER INFRASTRUCTURE 

VIDEO/LASER/MANDREL TESTING WITH STIPULATIONS 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 
 

   ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

 
REQUESTED BY: _        Kevin Tallant, City Attorney_____________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 



Current Division III section 1.11 Storm water Infrastructure Dedication requirements will be 
eliminated and the following storm water infrastructure inspections will be required.  
 
Division III section 1.11 Storm Water Infrastructure Inspection. 
 

1. The owner, developer and or contractor shall provide the City of Dawsonville 24 hour 
notification to perform a pre-construction meeting. 

 
2. Owner, developer and or contractor will notify the City of Dawsonville 24 hour to conduct a 

visual storm drain inspection of each individual line prior to backfill installation.  
 

3. The required visual inspections will verify foundation stability, depth, slope, type of pipe, class of 
pipe, bell to spigot installation, location and manhole structure exterior connection and seal. 
 

4. The City will perform the storm drain inspection within 48-hour. 
 

5. The City will allow a third-party storm drain inspection if one of the two following conditions 
apply and receives City approval for the third-party inspection. Condition number one: 
Unfavorable weather conditions expected within 48-hour. Condition number two: City 
representative can not perform the required inspection within 24 hours. 
 

6. Visual inspection of all storm water infrastructure will be required prior to final plat approval. 
 

7. Visual inspection of all storm water infrastructure will be required prior to bond release and City 
dedication. 
 

8. For any infrastructure presented for dedication to the City of Dawsonville which infrastructure 
was inspected, if at all, prior to January 1, 2020, video inspection is required before the 
infrastructure may be accepted.  For such video inspections: 
 

a. Video inspection will verify the pipe line is clear of debris, obstructions, ponding water, 
exposed reinforcing steel, joint offset, joint separation, rips, tears, cracks, holes, deviation 
from line and grade, and other anomalies not consistent with properly installed pipe. 

b. Any and all matters which need repair as shown on video inspection shall be repaired 
before the City will accept dedication. 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   IMPACT FEE STUDY AGREEMENT WITH GEORGIA MOUNTAIN REGIONAL 

COMMISSION  
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH GMRC TO PROVIDE AN IMPACT FEE 
STUDY FOR THE CITY.   

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES:  
 

• AGREEMENT APPROVED BY CITY ATTORNEY 
• COST: $15,000 
• RFP BIDS FOR IMPACT STUDY REJECTED BY COUNCIL ON 08/15/2022 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
     STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVING AGREEMENT 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 

 

 



 

GMRC Contracts – Dawsonville Impact Fee Study  
Version 081622 - Page 1 

PARTIES:  Georgia Mountains Regional Commission; 
   City of Dawsonville 
 
SUBJECT:  Impact Fee Study 
 
TERM:  September 20, 2022 through January 31, 2023              
 

 AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of ___________, 2022 between the 
GEORGIA MOUNTAINS REGIONAL COMMISSION, hereinafter referred to as the 
"Commission", and CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, hereinafter referred to as the "City". 

 WITNESSETH: 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, 
the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Description of Services:  The Commission will utilize tax records, demographic 

data, development records, and other pertinent information to assess the 
potential benefits and costs associated with the enactment of an Impact Fee 
program within the City of Dawsonville.  The full outline of information covered in 
the study shall be such that the City considers it sufficient for evaluating the 
viability of such a program.  The Commission shall also work with the City’s 
attorney to ensure the information is considered sufficient for eventual program 
justification. 
 
In delivering this study, the Commission will coordinate efforts with the City such 
that the procedures and data sources are approved, and that City leaders are 
made routinely aware of the status of the project.  As needed, Commission will 
present information about the effort and the final study to the City’s staff and 
elected officials, and make themselves available for any questions and/ or 
instruction. 
 

2. Term of Agreement:  The term of this Agreement shall be from September 20, 
2022 through January 31, 2023. 
 

3. Products to be Submitted:  Upon completion of the process, the Commission will 
supply the City with an Impact Fee Study containing (at a minimum) the following 
elements: 
 

Assessment of Projected Needs – Pertaining to the public services and 
facilities eligible for funding via impact fees under Georgia law, the 
Commission will work with City staff to identify the known and projected 
demands for the foreseeable future, developing an estimation of projected 
costs for capital improvements needed to service those demands.  This will 
be used to calculate the potential expenses eligible for funding generated by 
impact fees. 
 
Analysis of Potential Impact Fee Schedules – The Commission will assess 
possible fee schedules for the City by both comparing the rates and 
performances of impact fees from other area governments as well as with 
regard to effectively contributing to projected capital improvement expenses.  
The impact fee schedule shall assess impact fees in accordance with 



 

GMRC Contracts – Dawsonville Impact Fee Study  
Version 081622 - Page 2 

O.C.G.A. § 36-71-4(a)(b)(c)(q) and (r) such that the City can utilize the study 
to move forward with the adoption of an impact fee ordinance.  This will also 
include an analysis of project costs, adjustments, credits, etc.  
 
Assessment of Program Administration – The Commission will provide 
information outlining how an Impact Fee Program must be managed in 
accordance with State law, an assessment of how other area programs are 
administered, and an evaluation of how Dawsonville might best administer a 
program of their own, if so chosen.  This assessment will include discussions 
of administrative costs, management of appeals processes, compliance with 
annual State reporting, incorporating the program into the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, and other aspects of managing the program.  

 
In addition to the final deliverable, the Commission will provide the City with brief 
status reports on the first Monday of each month in October, November, and 
December.  These reports will include an accounting of work completed within 
the past month, an identification of key tasks scheduled for the next month, and 
a statement of any concerns or issues occurring during the process.   
 
A draft of the completed Impact Fee Study will be delivered to the City 
electronically by January 15, 2023.  Once fully approved by the City administrator 
and any key staff, the Commission will produce final versions of the document 
and provide the City with two (2) paper copies and an electronic (pdf file) version.   

 
4. Compensation:  The City shall pay to the Commission a total of Fifteen Thousand 

Dollars ($15,000.00) for the above-mentioned services and products. Payment 
schedule as follows: 

 
1. Upon fully executed contract - $2,500 
2.  November 15, 2022 - $5,000 
3.  January 15, 2022 - $5,000 
4. Upon completion of the project and final map/digital data delivery - 

$2,500 
 
The City will be invoiced by the Commission for compensation. 
 

5. Termination:  This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the other party. The Commission shall be 
compensated for all services rendered to and including the date of termination. 
City will also receive all products generated and work completed to that point by 
the Commission. 
 

6. Entire Agreement; Modification: (a) This writing constitutes the entire agreement 
of the parties, and no representations are made or relied upon by either party 
other than those expressly set forth. (b) No modification, amendment waiver, 
termination or discharge hereof shall be binding upon either party unless 
executed in writing by the parties. 
 

7. Execution in Duplicate:  This Agreement is executed in duplicate, and each of the 
duplicates shall be deemed to be an original and shall have the same force and 
effect as if it alone had been executed by the parties. 
 

  
  



 

GMRC Contracts – Dawsonville Impact Fee Study  
Version 081622 - Page 3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and affixed 
their seals the day and year first above written. 
 
        
       GEORGIA MOUNTAINS REGIONAL 
       COMMISSION 
       By: 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Heather Feldman, Executive Director 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       George Wangemann, Chairman 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to 
in my presence: 
 
________________________________ 
Notary Public 
 
(Seal) 
 
 
       CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
       By:  
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to 
in my presence: 
 
________________________________ 
Notary Public 
 
(Seal) 
 
 
 
 



                              
 

 
SUBJECT: SPECIAL EVENT WITH ALCOHOL – BOOTLEGGERS BAR AND GRILL,  
                            OCTOBER 21-23, 2022. 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022    
 
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION: GL ACCOUNT #        

  Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget _____ Capital Budget ____Other ________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund _____General Fund 
 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO CONSIDER APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL PERMIT AND SITE PLAN FOR 
DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM 
 
 
 

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• EVENT TO BE LOCATED AT WINNER CIRCLE AT GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME ON, OCTOBER 21-23, 2022. 
 
• PERMIT PREVIOUSLY APPROVED FOR THE GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME – MOONSHINE FESTIVAL 
OUTSIDE BAR, GREATER ATLANTA AUTO AUCTION AND MEMORIAL DAY CAR SHOW. 
 
• STATE AND LOCAL PERMIT APPLICATION HAVE BEEN COMPLETED THROUGH THE STATE LICENSING 
PORTAL. 
 
• REQUEST AND PRESENTATION BY MUSEUM DIRECTOR CINDY ELLIOTT. 
 
 

OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

REQUESTED BY: Diane Callahan, Interim Planning Director__ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 











                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   FUNDING FOR DEVELOPMENT OF WELL #112 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    Seek approval to pursue from Governor’s Office of Planning and Budget for Water – 
Population Grant. Grant is designed to provide financial assistance to communities with 
rapidly growing populations to better prepare them to meet current and future demands. 

    
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

OPB released word of this grant with a short turnaround as the deadline was September 9th. We have already applied for 
it.  If awarded the grant would be for the new well that is being designed now, well #112. The additional well will enable us 
to better serve our rapidly growing population. The grant would total $1,154,220.00 and would require a 25% match from 
the city. If awarded, the grant would provide the city $869,220.00 with a 25% from the city totaling $285,000.00. The city 
has already budgeted for the total amount. The local share would cover engineering services, geological services, and test 
wells. The grant’s 75% share would cover construction and construction contingency costs, including, well pump, well house, 
treatment facilities, an emergency generator, and all other work for a complete groundwater production facility. Additionally, 
the grant would include water lines to connect the new well to the water system. The city is not required to accept this grant. 
Staff recommend pursuit of this grant. 
 
 

     OPTIONS: Not pursue grant and cover entire cost out of Enterprise Fund capital budget. 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: Motion to authorize staff to pursue this grant and cover the 
city’s share out of the Enterprise Fund. 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager___ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT AMENDMENT REGARDING A TRAIL TO 

THE LIBARY 
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND DAWSON COUNTY TO CONSTRUCT A TRAIL 
FROM MAIN STREET PARK TO THE LIBRARY 

 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• IGA PREVIOUSLY APPROVED IN 2021 
• CHANGES MADE FOR TYPE OF BRIDGE/TRAIL 
• APPROVED BY CITY ATTORNEY    

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
  STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVAL AS SUBMITTED 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   15     
 

 

 



 

AMENDMENT TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

This Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement which was made and entered into 
as of the ___ day of __________, 2021, by and between DAWSON COUNTY, GEORGIA, a 
political subdivision of the State of Georgia (the “County”), and the CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, 
GEORGIA, a municipal corporation of the State of Georgia (the “City”) (collectively the 
“Parties”), is adopted this ___ day of __________, 2022. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the parties are authorized to enter into intergovernmental agreements 
pursuant to Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I of the Constitution of the State of Georgia of 1983 
regarding intergovernmental contracts (“Intergovernmental Contracts Clause”); and 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Contracts Clause provides, in pertinent part, as 
follows:  

The state, or any institution, department, or other agency thereof, and any county, 
municipality, school district, or other political subdivision of the state may contract 
for any period not exceeding 50 years with each other or with any other public 
agency, public corporation, or public authority for joint services, for the provision 
of services, or for the joint or separate use of facilities or equipment; but such 
contracts must deal with activities, services, or facilities which the contracting 
parties are authorized by law to undertake or provide. 

WHEREAS, intergovernmental agreements under Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I 
must “involve the provision of services, or . . . the joint or separate use of facilities or equipment, 
and deal with activities, services, or facilities which the contracting parties are authorized by law 
to undertake or provide” (City of Decatur v. DeKalb County, 289 Ga. 612, 713 S.E.2d 846 (2011) 
(internal quotations omitted));  

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the above-described Intergovernmental Agreement 
on the 7th day of October, 2021; 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Agreement provided for the construction of an access 
trail (“Access Trail”) connecting Main Street Park and the Dawson County Library; 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Agreement called for construction of an engineered 
bridge to cross a ditch or stream in the intended path of the Access Trail; 

WHEREAS, the City has determined in consultation with the Environmental Protection 
Division that piping can be used to manage any normal flow of water in the ditch or stream and 
that, therefore, no bridge across the stream is necessary; 

WHEREAS, the City has further determined that piping will be less expensive and safer 
for the public than a bridge; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties find it necessary to amend certain provisions of the 
Intergovernmental Agreement to allow for construction of piping instead of a bridge; 



2 
 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual benefits to the Parties of 
amending the Intergovernmental Agreement as described herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. 

To delete the tenth “WHEREAS” clause and insert in lieu thereof the following: 

WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville desires to construct a trail and related 
infrastructure that will provide pedestrian access between Main Street Park and the 
Dawson County Library; and 

2. 

To strike subparagraph a of paragraph 1 and insert in lieu thereof the following: 

a. Access Trail: The City shall construct an Access Trail to provide access between 
Main Street Park and the Dawson County Library.  The trail will be constructed by 
extending the asphalt from its present terminus in the north-easterly section of Main 
Street Park near the playground, with a paved walking path to connect to the paved 
parking lot behind the Dawson County Library. The trail is shown in white on the 
drawing attached as “Exhibit A” incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this 
express reference. The City shall also install a culvert, suitable and appropriate to 
prevent water in the ditch or stream from crossing, encroaching upon, or 
undermining the Access Trail. The culvert shall be 4 feet (48 inches) or larger and 
shall be appropriate to accommodate any volume or flow of water that ordinarily is 
present or exists in the ditch or stream, or reasonably could be expected to be 
present or exist during common weather events. The Access Trail shall be 
perpendicular to the culvert within the 25-foot buffer along the ditch or stream 
prescribed by O.C.G.A. § 12-7-6 of the Georgia Erosion and Sedimentation Act, 
and the line of the ditch or stream bed shall not be changed. The culvert and Access 
Trail shall be constructed according to best management practices under O.C.G.A. 
§ 12-7-1 et seq., and the City shall make all reasonable efforts to avoid any need to 
obtain a variance of the 25-foot buffer. The culvert pipe shall be appropriately 
covered and/or surrounded with gravel and stone; the pipe, gravel and stone shall 
be covered with mulch or another aesthetically appropriate material so that they are 
substantially not visible from the Access Trail or surrounding vicinity.   

3. 

To amend subparagraph d of paragraph 1 to remove the word “bridge” from the first 
sentence and to insert in lieu thereof the words “related infrastructure.” 

4. 

To amend subparagraph a of paragraph 2 to remove the word “bridge” from the first 
sentence and to insert in lieu thereof the words “related infrastructure.” 

 



3 
 

5. 

Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, all provisions of the Intergovernmental 
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 

6. 

This Amendment shall become effective on the date of its adoption. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the County have caused this Amendment to be 
executed under seal this ___ day of __________, 2022. 

 

Dawson County, Georgia         City of Dawsonville, Georgia 

 

___________________________________      ___________________________________ 
Billy Thurmond, Chairman        Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:            Attest: 
 
 
___________________________________      ___________________________________ 
Clerk of Dawson County        Clerk, City of Dawsonville, Georgia 
 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   2023 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE RATE AND ESTABLISH SERVICE 

CHARGE  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO PRESENT AND REQUEST APPROVAL FOR THE NEW RATE OF COMPENSATION TO THE CURRENT 
SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR FOR RENEWAL OF SERVICES IN 2023 AS PERMITTED IN THE 
CONTRACT ($15.90 PER CAN, PER MONTH) 
 
TO REQUEST A RATE INCREASE AND SET THE CITY’S SERVICE CHARGE TO COVER THE ADMIN AND 
CAPITAL COSTS INCURRED FOR PROVIDING THE SERVICE TO RESIDENTS 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• 2023 PROPOSED CONTRACTOR RATE - $15.90 PER CAN, PER MONTH 
• CURRENT CONTRACTOR RATE - $13.40 PER CAN, PER MONTH 
• NON-APPROVAL OF RATE WOULD RESULT IN BIDDING SERVICE OUT 

 
     

• 2023 CITY SERVICE CHARGE TO RESIDENTS - $19.90 (COST PLUS $4.00) 
• CURRENT CITY SERVICE CHARGE TO RESIDENTS - $17.40 (COST PLUS $4.00)            

 

     OPTIONS: 
 

   APPROVE, AMEND, DENY 
 

 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:    

   APPROVE NEW 2023 CONTRACTOR RATE OF $15.90 PER CAN, PER MONTH AND SET 2023 
RECOMMENDED SERVICE CHARGE TO RESIDENTS AT COST PLUS $4.00 FOR A TOTAL OF $19.90 
PER MONTH, PER CAN 

 

 

      
 
REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   16     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:                         2023 MEETING CALENDAR REVIEW                  _ 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  

• TO REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE DRAFT OF THE 2023 CITY MEETINGS CALENDAR 
 

• FINAL DRAFT TO BE PRESENTED AT THE OCTOBER 3, 2022 MEETING 
 

• DRAFT CALENDAR WILL BE PRESENTED TO PLANNING COMMISSION, HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION COMMISSION AND DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION AND INPUT 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      
     
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
   
     
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
        
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:   Beverly Banister, City Clerk_______________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   17   
 

 

 



January 2023 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
City Hall Closed 
New Year’s Day 
Observed 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
Planning 
Commission 

City Council Regular 
Meeting 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
City Hall Closed 
MLK Day 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
Downtown 
Development 
Authority 

29 30 31 

DRAFT



February 2023 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

   1 2 3 4 
       

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

26 27 28     
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



March 2023 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
City Council Regular 
Meeting 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
Planning 
Commission 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
City Council Regular 
Meeting & Work 
Session 

26 27 28 29 30 31 
Downtown 
Development 
Authority 

DRAFT



April 2023 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

      1 
       

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
 DC SCHOOL 

SPRING BREAK 
   City Hall Closed 

Good Friday 
 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

30       
       

 

DRAFT



May 2023 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
 Downtown 

Development 
Authority 

     

28 29 30 31    
 City Hall Closed 

Memorial Day 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



June 2023 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

    1 2 3 
       

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

25 26 27 28 29 30  
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



July 2023 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

      1 
       

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
  City Hall Closed 

Independence Day 
    

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
 Downtown 

Development 
Authority 

     

30 31      
       

 

DRAFT



August 2023 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

  1 2 3 4 5 
       

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

27 28 29 30 31   
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



September 2023 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

     1 2 
       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
 City Hall Closed 

Labor Day 
     

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
 Downtown 

Development 
Authority 

     

       
       

 

DRAFT



October 2023 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

29 30 31     
       

       
       

 

DRAFT



November 2023 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
City Council Regular 
Meeting 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
Planning 
Commission 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
DC 

School Break 
City Hall Closed 
Thanksgiving 

City Hall Closed 
Thanksgiving 

26 27 28 29 30 
Downtown 
Development 
Authority 

DRAFT



December 2023 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
City Council Regular 
Meeting 

Historic Preservation 
Commission 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
Planning 
Commission 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
City Council Regular 
Meeting & Work 
Session 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
City Hall Closed 
Christmas 

City Hall Closed 
Christmas Eve 
Observed 

31 

DRAFT



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     18     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

SEPTEMBER 13 FOR SEPTEMBER 19, 2022, MEETING 

Planning & Zoning Director: Interviews were conducted by a panel consisting of the City Manager, the Finance 
Administrator, and the Inspector on September 12th. References are being checked for the top three candidates with 
hopes of candidate selection by September 23rd. 
 
Downtown Strategic Plan Grant from ARC: We have been awarded the grant and the contract has been executed. 
 
Director of Downtown Development, Tourism, and Historic Preservation: Interviews were conducted, and we 
had three outstanding candidates making for a tough but outstanding decision. References were checked, and we 
will be selecting the candidate soon. An interview panel of the City Manager, City Clerk, and Finance Director were 
joined by Councilmen Walden and Illg at different times. 
 
Jenkins Property & the Downtown Vision Design: We await a closing date for the land acquisition. The selection 
of a company/agency to do a strategic plan can start soon.  
 
Food Truck Night: The September 9th is Food Truck Night. Trucks was a huge success, maybe the best yet. The 
weather was perfect, and trucks included, Ole Dad’s Wings, Meatballerz, Sweet Cheeks BBQ, Chuy Tacos, Tikiz, 
and Patty Kakes. Wilkes and the Coles provided outstanding music. The next event is October 7th 
 
OPB Grant for Water due to Population Increase: We had Turnipseed Engineering apply for a grant offered by the 
Governor’s Office of OPD that can be awarded to municipalities experiencing significant population increases. We fit 
the criteria well. Turnipseed prepared the grant, which was due 09/09.The grant request totaled $1,154,720.00 and 
would be used to cover the cost of drilling and setting up operation of the new well. The grant requires a 75-25 
match; so, our portion would be $285,000.00. We already had budgeted in our Enterprise Fund for the total amount. 
If awarded, this could represent a savings of up to $896,220.00.  We hope we are awarded the grant. 
 
City Hall Building Leaks: This week contractors resealed all the windows at city hall to stop leaks. If that fails, the 
next option will include silicone spray. If that fails, a great deal of masonry work will be required. When the building 
was built, no flashing was put in place to prevent leaks. 
 
Fire Hydrant Testing: Utility staff working with a contractor completed our annual hydrant testing which results 
determine our ISO rating. The report has been submitted and we have received word that our ISO rating will remain 
the same. 
 
Water Meter Upgrade: The project continues and thus far 1,960 meters have been installed. The installation of the 
radio network infrastructure should start next week. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: Soil content borings are complete and engineering plans have been submitted to the 
USDA for review and for funding consideration.  
 
Deputy Program with Sheriff’s Office: Currently we have no officers assigned to the city.  



Farmer’s Market:  The Farmer’s Market continues to fill to capacity each Saturday morning. Wednesday markets are 
slowing down as most produce has already come in.   
 
Fall Flu Clinic at the Farmer’s Market: The Dawson Co EMA/EMS and the local Department of Public Health have 
approached the city about hosting a flu clinic this fall at the Farmer’s Market. They seek to use this location as 
opposed to one of the county parks. We will let you know more as soon as we know more. 

Main Street Park Projects: 
 

• Disc Golf: Signs and maps are ordered. This week AEMC approached us about donating $10-13,000.00 to 
Main Street Park for potential projects, one of which may be the safety netting needed along the portion of 
the playground that faces the disk golf course. 
 

• Basketball Court: We had two vendors attend the pre-bid meeting yet only received one bid. The bid for 
the basketball court was $38,900.00 with an additional $16,900.00 should we desire fencing. If the 
basketball courts and pickleball courts are done at the same time, there is a 5% discount. Keep in mind, this 
does not include engineering or site preparation, which will require laser grading and 98% compaction. We 
are getting grading bids now. 

 
• Pickleball Courts:  We had two vendors attend the pre-bid meeting yet only received one bid. The bid for 

the pickleball courts came in at two courts for $46,948.00 or four courts for $60,948.00. These prices include 
fencing. If lights are added, that will be an additional $23,400.00. If the basketball courts and pickleball 
courts are done at the same time, there is a 5% discount. Keep in mind, this does not include engineering or 
site preparation, which will require laser grading and 98% compaction. We are getting grading bids now. 

 
• Shade: Staff continue researching shade for various locations in the park.  

 
• Skate Park Expansion: Staff are estimating cost for expansion of this amenity. 

  
• Small Bathroom between Shelter #3 and Skate Park/Court Area: We are working identify a modular rest 

room that can be set on site after grading and hooked up to utilities.  
 

• Stage: Staff are researching the purchase of a hydraulic, mobile stage, similar to what we used at the tree 
lighting event. Since it is portable it can be set up and taken down in a few hours. This idea is opposed to an 
amphitheater. Our concerns for an amphitheater include cost, additionally facility would sit outside, weather, 
and possibly get vandalized. As we develop more research, we will present pros, cons, and a 
recommendation soon.  

 
• Dog Park: Eagle Scout candidate Palmer Hartley has finished his project complete with obstacles for the 

dogs, signage, and an entry way. Once the sidewalk and landscape are complete, we hope to have a grand 
opening of this great addition to our community. 

 
• Bridge & Trail to Library: EPD approved a culvert at the location where the bridge was to be constructed 

connecting Main Street Park to the library via walkway. This was great news and could save the city up to 
$45,000.00. Our attorney and the county’s attorney are revising the IGA. 

 
• Sidewalk to Main Street Park from Care Facility: We now have bids to connect the care facility to the 

park. The Dawson County Civitan Club will reimburse the city for the portion of the sidewalk on their 
property, and we will construct and pay for the sidewalk on city property. We are verifying slope in relation to 
ADA standards and awaiting word from contractors for start date. 



• Geocaching Site: Geocaching is a sport that is growing in popularity. There has existed a cache at the 
GRHOF for years. We have been approached by a volunteer geocaching enthusiast that wants to install and 
will maintain three sites, one in Main Street Park, one at the Dog Park, and one at Wallace Park. Staff have 
met with her, and we are awaiting her official proposal. 
 

• Splash Pad: Research into the possibility of adding this amenity is underway. I will attach some 3-D 
renderings for four pads with cost estimates. These are for flow-through water not recycled. 

 
GRHOF Events: A very successful induction ceremony was held 8/13 and the Labor Day Car Show, despite bad 
weather, was successful. 
 
Project – Administrative Building for Public Works and Utilities Director: This project is complete, and we will 
be scheduling a grand opening soon. 
 
Covid Protocol: Currently no staff are out due to Covid. 
 
Niche Columbarium: Staff are researching potential models and cost for this addition to our cemetery. We hope to 
offer you cost proposals in October.  
 
Comprehensive Plan: It is almost time to begin reviewing our city’s comprehensive plan last completed in 2018. 
This formal process should start in September. We are working with Adam Hazell of GMRC planning to begin this 
process and discussing update of our CIE as part of that plan. 
 
Old Cemetery to National Register of Historic Places: Pre-pandemic, the city was working on getting the 
cemetery listed on the National Register of Historic Places. The process got put on hold due to the pandemic. Staff 
are working with Joe Rothwell at GMRC to get this project re-started. 
 
Leak Adjustments: 5 Leak Adjustment this month. 

Water $412.50   Sewer $238.83   Total $651.33 

Calendar YTD     $15,406.12 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/19/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2022 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   19   
 

 

 



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

July 1, 2022 - August 31, 2022

17%

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
      Taxes 2,163,050$       322,058$          14.89%
      Licenses and permits 91,900              14,580              15.87%
      Intergovernmental revenues 6,000                -                   0.00%
      Fees 256,975            27,560              10.72%
      Other 796,326            32,349              4.06%

               Total revenues 3,314,251         396,547            11.96%

EXPENDITURES
   Department:
      Council 134,400            26,911              20.02%
      Mayor 22,860              2,479                10.84%
      Elections 15,000              -                   0.00%
      Administration 1,769,862         159,898            9.03%
      City Hall building 163,694            10,128              6.19%
      Animal control 1,536                -                   0.00%
      Roads 584,363            102,406            17.52%
      Parks 65,528              13,868              21.16%
      Planning and zoning 440,008            88,310              20.07%
      Economic development 117,000            -                   0.00%

 
               Total expenditures 3,314,251         404,000            12.19%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (7,453)              

      Transfer in From Reserves 7,453                

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 0                       



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND

July 1, 2022 - August 31, 2022

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
       Water fees 800,000$        157,875$        19.73%
       Sewer fees 900,000          183,174          20.35%
       Garbage fees 230,200          49,393            21.46%
       Miscellaneous 357,683          56,692            15.85%

               
               Total revenues 2,287,883       447,134          19.54%

EXPENDITURES
        Depreciation 574,000          101,466          17.68%
        Garbage service 230,200          50,408            21.90%
        Group insurance 164,000          39,565            24.13%
        Insurance -                  -                  #DIV/0!
        Interest 87,450            13,422            15.35%
        Payroll taxes 31,000            5,284              17.05%
        Professional 193,000          119,027          61.67%
        Miscellaneous 149,311          13,929            9.33%
        Repairs/supplies 229,000          16,140            7.05%
        Retirement 24,000            4,350              18.13%
        Salaries 355,672          70,648            19.86%
        Technical services 77,000            10,160            13.19%
        Utilities 173,250          15,850            9.15%

               Total expenditures 2,287,883       460,249          20.12%

INCOME (LOSS) (13,115)           



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VI

July 1, 2022 - August 31, 2022

SPLOST VI
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Interest 100                   45                     45.00%
       Other 42,900              -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 43,000              45                     0.10%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   42,500              0.00%
       Sewer projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer 34,000              -                   0.00%
       Water projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market 9,000                1,500                16.67%
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 43,000              44,000              102.33%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (43,955)            

      Transfer in From Reserves 43,955              
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VII

July 1, 2022 - August 31, 2022

SPLOST VII
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes 1,599,900         192,981            12.06%
       Interest 100                   351                   351.00%
       Other -                   -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 1,600,000         193,332            12.08%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   -                   0.00%
       Land Acq. / Downtown 789,000            789,000            0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects/Sewer Projects 677,000            -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water 34,000              -                   0.00%
       Farmers market -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Parks and recreation 100,000            -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 1,600,000         789,000            49.31%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (595,668)          

      Transfer in From Reserves 595,668            
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (0)                     


	1. 09.19.2022 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 08.15.2022 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session.DRAFT
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1 Executive Summary PROCLAMATION
	9. 2 PROCLAMATION - CHASE ELLIOTT DA
	10. 1 Executive Summary STATE RESOLUTION
	11. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROADWAY AND DRAINAGE SYSTEMS
	11. 2. Current Division III section 1
	12. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items IMPACT FEE
	12. 2. GMRC Proposed Agreement_Revised
	13. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM
	13. 2. BOOTLEGGERS BAR  GRILL APPLICATION_Redacted
	14. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items WELL 112 FUNDING
	15. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items IGA - TRAIL TO LIBRARY
	15. 2 Draft amendment to Trail IGA.2021 - CLEAN
	16. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items GARBAGE 2023
	17. 1 Executive Summary For  2023 MEETINGS CALENDAR
	17. 2 2023 Meeting Calendar - DRAFT
	1 January
	2 February
	3 March
	5 May
	6 June
	8 August
	12 December

	18. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	18. 2 09192022 CITY MANAGER REPORT
	19. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	19. 2. Financial Statements-AUG22
	GF Budget
	WS vs Budget
	SPLOST
	SPLOST VII




